
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, January 15, 2019, 7:00pm
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting
ii. 2019 Property and Liability insurance invoice

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard 

V. Audit presentation                                 Kamp

VI. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox

ii. Foundation update Fox

iii. December 2018 financial statements Fox 

iv. Director's report Fox

VII.  Previous business
i. Special Districts Association Oregon annual conference discussion Sheppard

VIII.New Business
i. Odell pop up library location discussion      Sheppard

ii.  Rivistas Subscription Services (ACTION) Sheppard

iii. Library Director Evaluation Policy (ACTION) Sheppard

iv. Special Districts Ethics training video Sheppard

IX. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard

X. Adjournment                  Sheppard

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7:00 to 9:00pm in the Jeanne 
Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15] 1



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, January 15, 2019, 7:00pm
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting
Attachments:  III.i Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting

ii. 2019 Property and Liability insurance invoice
Attachments: III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice

This invoice is for our annual property and liability insurance. The invoice is $8,382, approximately 
$216 less than last year. We received a fourteen percent discount on insurance thanks to our work on 
Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) best practices recommendations and the Board 
Practice Assessment by SDAO. 

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard 

V. Audit presentation Kamp 
Attachments: 

• V.a. Audit 2017-18 – Communication to the governing body
• V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report

Tara Kamp of Pauly Rogers and Co., PC, will present the District's 2017-18 fiscal year
audit via conference call. The audit documents are attached (the letter to the governing body and the 
financial report). There are also bound copies for District Board members available at the front desk of
the library. The letter to the governing body is an overview of the findings of the audit, while the 
financial report is the detailed findings and numbers themselves. Please bring any questions you have
to the meeting.      
                                                      
VI. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox
• The Friends of the Library currently have $25,0621.71 in their bank account. 

◦ $400 audiobooks
◦ $12,653.64 Checking
◦ $12,09.07 Hood River Reads

• The annual book sale will take place Thursday, June 6 through Saturday, June 8.

ii. Foundation update Fox
• The Library Foundation has started to plan their annual fundraiser Feast of Words. This 

year the fundraiser will focus on raising funds for library services in Odell. The funds will be 
used to fund pop-up library services, technology, and a consultant to explore a permanent, 

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15], supplementary info 2



physical branch in Odell.
• The Foundation have moved their meeting time to 5:00pm on the first Wednesday of the 

month.
• The Foundation will be doing a countywide mailing to spread awareness about the library 

and hopefully gain new members and donors. 

iii. December 2018 financial statements Fox 
The December financial statements were unavailable at the time the meeting packet was distributed. 
There was a delay at the accountant’s office. I will bring the statements to the board meeting.

iv. Director's report Fox
Administration

• We average 2-3 incidents per week since December 1. 
◦ Staff are watching an online training called, Mental Health Training series: Help staff deal 

with difficult patrons and situations. It was created by the California State Library. It covers 
how to interact with those experiencing mental illness. 

◦ In addition, we will offer an eight hour training, Mental Health First Aid, to our PIC (Person-
In-Charge) staff members. I will also request MCCL provide a mental health and 
deescalation training at an upcoming staff meeting.

• Special Districts Association of Oregon will be conducting an ergonomic assessment of our 
library on Wednesday, January 23.

• I’m exploring new safety measures at the Cascade Locks and Parkdale Library branches, 
since staff work alone in these facilities and are often the only one in the building.

Facilities
• Michael Peterson-Love inspected our roof as part of our new monthly inspection. He removed 

moss and repaired a shingle. The flat roof section, the membrane, shows some wear and there
are possible tears (difficult to tell if the membrane has been punctured) where the HVAC 
compressors were dragged over the atrium area. In the spring, Peterson recommends washing
the flat area and then carefully inspecting the membrane. 

• We are still exploring options for a permanent location in Odell. I reached out again to Dan 
Goldman to follow up on the possibility of space in St. Francis house. Goldman stated there is 
no space currently at Mid Valley and no room for an additional outbuilding on the site. He 
stated they are currently undertaking a boundary review effort with the aim of smoothing 
enrollment across the district. This means there are potential changes at both Wy’east and Mid
Valley in terms of the available space at those schools, but he will not have a better sense of 
the opportunities until after the process plays itself out. The School Board will take action in 
April/May. 

• We recently had the igniter replaced on the boiler, which fixed the issue of the boiler 
intermittently turning off and requiring a manual reset. In the spring, we will complete the 
blanket repair. 

Programs
• Bullet journal workshop – Saturday, January 12, 1pm. This workshop will help people learn 

how to set-up a Bullet Journal, a customizable organization system. It can be a to-do list, 
sketchbook, notebook, and diary, or all of the above. It’s co-taught by Assistant Director Arwen 
Ungar and Friends of the Library President Nadine Klebba.

• Makerspace programs continues on Wednesdays with Robot coding, Lego Club, and Teen 
crafts. We will hold a Family Maker afternoon on Saturday, January 26, 2pm.

• Teen events will include a craft event and a movie screening.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15], supplementary info 3



VII.  Previous business
i. Special Districts Association Oregon annual conference discussion Sheppard

Attachments: VII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure

This year the Special Districts Association of Oregon annual conference will be held in Sunriver, 
Oregon February 8-10. The conference usually has sessions designed for board members. Each year 
we send one board member to the conference. SDAO has opened up registration for the conference 
and hotel. We can discuss if any board member wants to attend. There is a conference brochure in the
meeting packet with a full listing of conference sessions.

Assistant Director Arwen Ungar will be attending for the District. This is her first SDAO annual 
conference. I attended a conference while I was Assistant Director and found it valuable. 

VIII.New Business
i. Odell pop up library location discussion Fox 

The Pine Grove-Odell United Methodist Church located at 3422 Odell Hwy in downtown Odell has 
offered their meeting space for our pop up library. The meeting space, located in their basement, holds
up to 60 people. I spoke to Pastor Tim Willis regarding the partnership. Willis met with his board and 
they are supportive of the arrangement. Willis stated, “this is exactly one of the ways our church wants
to impact our community.” The church allows other entities and groups to use the space, such as Odell
Lions club and AA meetings. We are still discussing possible days and times, but we’re leaning toward
Saturdays from 10am-2pm. 

The church will offer the District use of their tables and chairs, wi-fi network, and possibly a small 
storage space. 

Willis expressed we may offer them payment if we wish, but they do not have a set price. In the FY 
2018-19 budget, I allocated $2,675 for a potential space in Odell. I recommend we offer the church 
$10 per hour. If we offer one four hour time slot, one time per week for 22 weeks from February 
through June 2019, it will cost the District $880. I can consult with Willis and our lawyer Ruben 
Cleaveland regarding a contract. 

ii.  Rivistas Subscription Services (ACTION) Sheppard
Attachments: 

• VIII.ii. Invoice from Rivistas Subscription Services

The District has about 82 periodicals subscriptions. This includes newspapers and magazines, for 
adults, teens, and children, at all three branches, in English and Spanish. To save staff time and 
District funds, we purchase the vast majority of subscriptions through a subscription agent. This allows
us to pay a single invoice for several titles rather than having to deal with hundreds of separate 
invoices. Last year, the District paid $3933.04 for our Rivistas Subscription Service. Our interactions 
with Rivistas has been positive, and they receive good reviews from other libraries. They also 
specialize in serving public libraries.

The Rivistas invoice for $3,868.02 includes the titles we plan to purchase in 2019. In addition to those 
titles, we also receive area newspapers and Gorge Magazine. We are adding the following new titles 
this year: Vogue, Cocina Facil, and Futbol Total. We have an increase in our subscription to Library 
Journal and School Library Journal because they have moved their subscriptions to online and print. 

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15], supplementary info 4



These publications are used by collection development staff for purchasing materials for the collection.

We are canceling some titles this year, too, due to low use. These include 1859 Oregon’s Magazine, 
Air & Space, Art in America, Baby Bug (drop to one subscription), Bicycling, Birds and Blooms, Boy’s 
Life, Electric Flight, Fine Gardening, Fine Woodworking, Glamour, Guitar Player, Guns and Ammo, 
HGTV, Horse Illustrated, the Kiteboard, LEO LEO, Model Railroader, Natural History, Otaku USA, 
Practical Homeschooling, Pregnancy & Newborn, Ranger Rick, Jr., Seventeen, Ski Magazine, Sports 
Ilustrated, Transworld snowboarding, and Whole Dog Journal. 

The magazines are funded by our Library Foundation. I seek approval of the Revistas invoice for 
$3868.02. 

We are looking into adding an online database for magazines. Many libraries now offer this service. 
This will be funded by the Library Foundation funds. 

iii. Library Director Evaluation Policy (ACTION) Sheppard
Attachment: VIII.ii. Library Director Evaluation Policy

I consulted with the human resources department at Special Districts Association of Oregon. They 
recommended the following changes: 

• Add “or opportunities” to the following sentence: In addition to evaluating performance, the 
review will include opportunity to create annual goals and identify training needs or 
opportunities for the Library Director. 

• Add “and changed as needed” to the following sentence: The annual evaluation timeline shall 
be created and changed as needed by the Board President and approved by the Board of 
Directors.

• Add the word “anonymous” to question number three. District staff shall be requested to supply
anonymous written input on approved evaluation forms, which shall allow for standard ratings 
and space for written comments.

• Add the sentence, “The salary increase shall be in compliance with the established salary 
structure system.” At this time, the Board of Directors shall determine the amount of salary 
increase (if any) in the Library Director’s compensation to be awarded in the next fiscal year 
(July 1). The salary increase shall be in compliance with the established salary structure 
system. The salary deliberations shall be held in public session. 

We discussed the Assistant Director being involved in compiling information and communicating with 
staff. This procedure was put in place by my predecessor and I did this task when I was Assistant 
Director. SDAO firmly stated, we should not have the Assistant Director position involved in this level 
of personnel matters; especially because the Assistant Director reports to the Director.  This kind of 
personnel information should be shared with human resources only or a neutral position. I recommend
we return to having the Board President compile and administer the evaluations. I would be happy to 
provide training and make the process as easy as possible. 

iv. Special Districts Ethics training video Sheppard
Each year the District Board views the Special Districts Association Safe Personnel ethics training 
together. This month we’ll watch a 19 minute video at the board meeting.

IX. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard
• Review Library Card Policy
• Budget committee and calendar approval 

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15], supplementary info 5



• Staff presentation – Anna Lim, Cataloging Specialist

X. Adjournment                  Sheppard

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7:00 to 9:00pm in the Jeanne 
Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2019-01-15], supplementary info 6



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, December 18, 2018, 7:00pm
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard, President

Present: Rachael Fox (staff), Jean Sheppard, Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Sara Marsden and Yeli
Boots (staff).

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
President Jean Sheppard called the meeting to order at 7:02pm. The November Financial statements 
and draft Memorandum of Understanding was added to the agenda and distributed to the board. 
Marsden moved to approved the agenda as amended. Hackett seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously.

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
None stated.

III. Consent Agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from November 27, 2018 meeting
Janik moved to approve the consent agenda. Marsden seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard      
None. 

V. Reports 

i. Friends update Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. It was noted Sheppard and Bureker attended the 
gathering.

ii. Foundation update Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

iii. November 2018 financial statements Fox 
The November financial statements were distributed to the board. Sheppard noted we had already 
received $821,155 of the tax revenue. 

iv. Director's report Fox
There was a discussion regarding the incident increase at the library. Marsden inquired what type of 
training the staff has received. Fox stated last year a Hood River Police officer visited a staff meeting 
to answer questions, staff were offered online training and an employee from Mid-Columbia Center for 
Living offered a deescalation techniques training at a staff meeting. Sheppard suggested more training
for staff focused on addressing mental health. Fox stated she would reach out to MCCL.

The board discussed other possible locations for the pop up library in Odell. Sheppard suggested the 

III.i Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting 7



church in Odell. The school district was also mentioned. Fox stated she and Bilingual Outreach 
Specialist, Yeli Boots would explore those options. Fox stated she would reach out to former Library 
District board member Sara Snyder to discuss possible options, since she works in Odell. Boots stated
she planned to offer a survey at parent meetings in Odell to determine the best day and time for the 
pop up library. 

VI.  Previous business
VII. New Business

i. Odell Farmer’s Market (Meracado del Valle) position Fox and Boots
Boots stated Gorge Grown approached her regarding the partnership and she was conducting many 
of the duties last year and assisting their new staff member. Boots stated Gorge Grown has 
experienced difficulty hiring a staff member with the skills set they need and the there is a different 
staff member each year in the position. Marsden asked why Gorge Grown did not directly hire Boots. 
Fox and Sheppard both stated insurance was the main reason. Sheppard asked if Boots would have 
to schedule the vendors. Boots stated they have another staff member who does it. 

Marsden commented regarding the workload for hosting a table at the market and perhaps another 
staff member could offer a table for adult materials. Boots stated she offered materials for all ages. 
Fox stated, she and Boots have discussed adding another staff member for a few hours at each 
market, perhaps one of the youth who live in Odell, who work for the District on the Odell bus project.

Fox stated she was still negotiating the details with Sullivan and Sullivan planned to consult with the 
Gorge Grown board. The board said it sounded fine and would wait to hear if the board at Gorge 
Grown approved of the arrangement.

ii. Dental Insurance renewal (ACTION) Sheppard
Sheppard stated she had a negative experience with Lincoln Financial offering a lower rate and then 
raising the cost significantly and hoped this would not happen at the District. 
Marsden made a motion to approve Lincoln Financial as the dental provider for the District for 2019. 
Hackett seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

iii. Board Governance Policy (ACTION) Sheppard
Janik moved to adopt Resolution 2018-19.03, Amending the Board Governance Policy. Marsden 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

iv. Preventative Maintenance Policy and Facilities review (ACTION) Sheppard
Hackett made a motion to approve the Preventative Maintenance Policy. Janik seconded. The motion 
passed unanimously.

v. Special Districts Association Oregon annual conference discussion Sheppard
The board would like to review the conference agenda to determine if they want to send a board 
member. Fox will email the board members a link to the conference agenda.

vi. Board member positions discussion Sheppard
Sheppard and Hackett stated they would both be running for the positions. Fox stated she would make
sure to contact Hood River News to ensure the board members statements are in the paper. 

vii. Special Districts Ethics training video Sheppard
Fox was unable to find the training on the website due to a recent upgrade on the site. Fox will find the

Page 2

III.i Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting 8



training and it will be offered at the next board meeting.

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard

IX. Adjournment                  Sheppard
Adjournment 7:45pm.

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive 
Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current 
meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language 
interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 3

III.i Minutes from December 18, 2018 meeting 9



Date: 01-Jan-19

INVOICE

Entity ID

26994

Invoice #

34P26994-4482

Effective Date

01-Jan-19

Expiration Date

31-Dec-19

Invoice Date

01-Jan-19

Coverage Contribution

Hood River County Library District

502 State St

Named 
Participant:

Agent: Columbia River Insurance

Hood River, OR 97031

P.O. Box 500

Hood River, OR 97031-0059

2018 Longevity 
Credit Amount**

$406.50

$3,431SDIS Liability Coverage

$0Auto Liability (Includes 
Auto Excess and Auto 
Supplemental Coverages) 

$150Non-owned and Hired Auto Liability
$0Auto Physical Damage

$110Hired Auto Physical Damage

Property

$0Earthquake

Flood
$0Equipment Breakdown / Boiler and Machinery

$473Crime

($480)

$2,840

Liability Contribution
Less Best Practices Credit

Adjusted Contribution

$0

$0

Less Best Practices Credit

Adjusted Contribution

Auto Contribution

($821)

$4,809

Less Best Practices Credit

Adjusted Contribution

$5,630Property Contribution

($110)Less Multi-Line Discount Credit

$0

**Only Eligible Districts that 
signed the  Longevity Credit 
and Rate Lock Guarantee 
Agreement will receive the 
indicated Longevity Credit 
Amount 

Total: $8,382

Coverage is provided for only those coverages indicated above for which a contribution is 
shown or that are indicated as "included."  Your payment evidences "acceptance" of this 
renewal.  Please use the payment coupon on the following page to help us apply your payment 
correctly.

Payment instructions are on the following page.

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 10



Date: 01-Jan-19

INVOICE

Please include the bottom portion of this sheet with you payment.

** Payment Due: 3/1/2019 **

$8,382

Make Checks Payable to:

P.O. Box 12613
Special Districts Insurance Services

Salem, OR 97309
Phone: 1-800-285-5461  Fax: 503-371-4781

Check #_______________  Amount $_________________

Hood River County Library District

Total Due:

01-26994Customer ID:

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 11



Certificate Number: 34P26994-4482 Coverage Period: 1/1/2019 through 12/31/2019

Named Participant: Agent of Record:
Hood River County Library District

502 State St

Named Participant:

Columbia River Insurance

Hood River, OR 97031

P.O. Box 500

Hood River, OR 97031-0059

Special Districts Insurance Services Trust (SDIS)

SDIS Liability Coverage Declarations

This certificate is made and is mutually accepted by the Trust and Named Participant subject to all provisions, 
stipulations, and agreements which are made a part of the SDIS Liability Coverage Document.  This certificate 
represents only a brief summary of coverages.  Other conditions and exclusions apply as described in the SDIS Liability 
Coverage Document.  Titles referenced above are provided merely for convenience of reference and shall not be 
deemed in any way to limit or affect the provisions to which they relate.

    $25,000,000 maximum limit for all SDIS Trust Participants involved in the same Occurrence or Wrongful Act.

$2,840.00Total Contribution:Forms applicable to Named Participant:

SDIS Liability Coverage Document effective January 1, 2019

Unless otherwise indicated in Section III Additional Coverages of the SDIS Liability Coverage Document, the following 
Additional Coverages are not in addition to the Total Limit of Liability identified above.

Additional and Supplemental Coverages

Per Occurrence Limit of Liability $5,000,000 None

SDIS Liability Coverage Limit Deductible

Per Wrongful Act Limit of Liability $5,000,000

No Limit Except as 
Outlined Below

None

Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability

Limits of Liability:

None

    Ethics Complaint Defense Costs

    EEOC/BOLI Defense Cost

$2,500

$5,000,000

$5,000

None

Included

Included

    Limited Pollution Coverage $250,000 $250,000 IncludedNone

    Injunctive Relief Defense Costs $25,000 $25,000 Included

    Applicators Pollution Coverage $50,000 $50,000 IncludedNone

    Premises Medical Expense $5,000 $5,000 IncludedNone

None

None

None

    Fungal Pathogens (Mold) Defense Costs $100,000 $100,000 IncludedNone

    Lead Sublimit Defense Costs $50,000 $50,000 IncludedNone

    OCITPA Expense Reimbursement $100,000 $100,000 IncludedNone

Coverage Limit Coverage Period 
Total Limit

ContributionDeductible

    $10,000 controlled burn deductible if DPSST guidelines are not followed.
    $25,000 Employment Practices deductible for terminations when SDIS is not contacted for legal advice in advance.

    Lead Liability Defense Costs limited to $200,000 for all members of the Trust combined during the Coverage Period.

    Marine Salvage Expense Reimbursement $250,000 $250,000 IncludedNone

    Criminal Defense Costs $100,000 $100,000 IncludedNone

    Data Disclosure Liabiilty $1,000,000 $1,000,000 IncludedNone

Employment Practices Wrongful Act Sub-Limit of Liability $5,000,000 None

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(1)

(4)

(6)

(7)

(5)

(1)
(2)
(3)

(6)

    Injunctive Relieve Defense Costs limited to $100,000 for all members of the Trust combined during the Coverage Period(4)
    OCITPA Expense Reimbursement limited to $500,000 for all members combined during the Coverage Period.(5)

    Criminal Defense Costs limited to $500,000 for all members of the Trust combined during the Coverage Period.(7)

Countersigned by: ________________________________________ Tuesday, January 1, 2019

Authorized Representative

Special Districts Insurance Services Trust

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 12



Certificate Number: 34P26994-4482 Coverage Period: 1/1/2019 through 12/31/2019

Named Participant: Agent of Record:
Hood River County Library District

502 State St

Named Participant:

Columbia River Insurance

Hood River, OR 97031

P.O. Box 500

Hood River, OR 97031-0059

Special Districts Insurance Services Trust (SDIS)
Auto Coverage Declarations

No Coverage None No Coverage

Auto Liability Coverage

Deductible Contribution  

Applicable Coverage Document: SDIS Auto Liability Coverage Document, January 1, 2019

Auto Liability Coverage

Non-Owned/Hired Auto Liability $500,000 $150.00None

No Coverage None No Coverage

Excess Auto Liability Coverage

Per Accident Limit of Liability

Deductible Contribution  

Applicable Coverage Document: SDIS Auto Excess Liability Coverage Document, January 1, 2019

Excess Auto Liability Coverage

Excess Non-Owned/Hired Auto 
Liability

$4,500,000 Included with Non-
Owned/Hired AL Contribution

None

No Coverage None No Coverage

Auto Supplemental Coverage

Limit of Liability Deductible Contribution  

Applicable Coverage Document: SDIS Auto Supplemental Coverage Document, January 1, 2019

Personal Injury Protection

Uninsured/Underinsured 
Motorist Bodily Injury Coverage

No Coverage None

Auto Physical Damage

Applicable Coverage Document: SDIS Auto Physical Damage Coverage Document, January 1, 2019

Per Accident Limit of Liability Deductible Contribution  

No Coverage N/A No Coverage

$50,000 $110.00$100/$500

Auto Physical Damage

Hired Auto Physical Damage

No Coverage

 Coverage is provided for only those coverages indicated below for which a contribution is shown.

This certificate is made and is mutually accepted by the Trust and Named Participant subject to all provisions, stipulations, and 
agreements which are made a part of the coverage documents referenced above.  This certificate represents only a brief summary 
of coverages.  Other conditions and exclusions apply as described in the above-referenced coverage documents.  Titles 
referenced above are provided merely for convenience of reference and shall not be deemed in any way to limit or affect the 
provisions to which they relate.

Per Accident Excess Limit 
of Liability

Countersigned by: ________________________________________ Tuesday, January 1, 2019
Authorized Representative
Special Districts Insurance Services TrustIII.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 13



 Property Coverage Declarations
Special Districts Insurance Services

Certificate Number: 34P26994-4482 Coverage Period: 1/1/2019 through 12/31/2019

Named Participant: Agent of Record:
Hood River County Library District

502 State St

Columbia River Insurance

Hood River, OR 97031

P.O. Box 500

Hood River, OR 97031-0059

$4,318,700

$1,734,976

Buildings, Other Structures and Scheduled Outdoor Property

Personal Property

Mobile Equipment, Scheduled Personal Property and Scheduled Fine Arts

Scheduled Property Values:

The Trust shall not pay, or be liable for more than the Total Limit of Indemnification in any single 
"occurrence" during the Property Coverage Period, including all related costs and expenses, all costs 
of investigation, adjustment and payment of claims, but excluding the salaries of your regular 
employees and counsel on retainer. 

The subjects of coverage listed below are sub-limited within the "occurrence" Total Limit of Indemnification shown above.  
The limits reflect the maximum amount the Trust will pay for losses involving these coverages.  The titles below are 
provided merely for convenience of reference and shall not be deemed in any way to limit or affect the provisions to which 
they relate.

Sublimits (Per Occurrence):

Total Limit of Indemnification (Per Occurrence)

$300,000,000 SDIS Per Occurence Aggregate Loss Limit

$6,053,676

Pollutant Clean-up and Removal From Land or Water- (Sublimit is $50,000 or 20% of the 
scheduled location(s) value whichever is less)

$50,000

Unscheduled Fine Arts (Fine Art may be specifically scheduled for higher limits)$10,000

Personal Property of Others within your Care, Custody, or Control, other than Mobile 
Equipment

$250,000

$5,000,000 Debris Removal - (Sublimit is $5,000,000 or 25% of loss, whichever is less)

Fungus as a Result of a "Covered Cause of Loss" - (Sublimit is $10,000 or 10% of the 
covered portion of the loss whichever is less)

$10,000

Sublimits for Covered Property:

Property of Employees/Volunteers - (subject to a $5,000 maximum per person)$100,000

Mobile Equipment of others that is within your Care, Custody or Control or Rented or Leased for up to 
30 days

$100,000

(Reference Section VIII - Covered Property in the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

Sublimits for Additional Coverages:
(Reference Section X - Additional Coverages in the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

Preservation of Undamaged Covered Property - (Sublimit is $10,000 or 10% of the covered 
portion of the loss whichever is less)

$10,000

Professional Services - (Sublimit is $250,000 or 10% of the covered portion of the loss 
whichever is less)

$250,000

Fire Department Service Charge$25,000

Recharging of Fire Extinguishing Equipment$10,000

Arson Reward$10,000

$5,000,000 Increased Cost of Construction - Enforcement of Ordinance or Law - (Sublimit is 
$5,000,000 or 25% of loss, whichever is less)

$500,000 Increased Cost of Construction - Cost Resulting From Unforeseen Delay - (Sublimit is 
$500,000 or 25% of loss, whichever is less)

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 14



 Property Coverage Declarations
Special Districts Insurance Services

$1,000,000 Business Income

Property in Transit

Valuable Papers and Records - (Sublimit is lesser of: Cost to research, replace, or restore the 
lost information; Actual Cash Value in blank state of paper, tape or other media if records are 
not actually researched, restored or replaced; or amount of sublimit listed here)

$2,000,000 Property in the Course of Construction. (If you have not complied with all of the notification 
requirements set forth in Section XII.A. within 90 days, the most the Trust will pay for property in the 
Course of Construction is $500,000. If after 90 days you have not complied with all the notification 
requirements set forth in Section XII.A. then no coverage will be provided for property in the Course 
of Construction).

$250,000

$250,000

Accounts Receivable$250,000

Covered Leashold Interest  - (Sublimit is lesser of amount listed here, or an amount pro-
rated based on time between the Loss and the earlier of: Lease Expiration; Re-occupancy of 
leased property; or lease of new property)

$100,000

Property Damaged by Computer Virus$25,000

Unscheduled Outdoor Property$25,000

Property Damaged by Overflow of Sewers or Drains$50,000

$1,000,000 Extra Expense

Sublimits for Additional Coverages - Business Income and Extra Expense:
(Reference Section XI - Additional Coverages - Business Income and Extra Expense in the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

$25,000 Enforcement of Order by Government Agency or Authority

$25,000 Business Income from Dependent Property

$100,000 Interruption of Utility Services

$25,000 Inability to Discharge Outgoing Sewage

Sublimits for Coverage Extensions:
(Reference Section XII - Coverage Extensions in the SDIS Property Coverage Document)

Miscellaneous Property Damaged by Specified Cause of Loss or Theft - (Sublimit 
lesser of: Appraised Value; Fair Market Value; or Sublimit listed here)

$250,000

Vandalism and Malicious Mischief to Tracks and Artificial Turf Fields$250,000

Newly Acquired or Constructed Property. (No coverage will be provided for newly acquired or 
constructed property unless you notify the Trust in writing no later than 90 days after the dates 
specified in section XII. A.)

$500,000

Property Damaged by an Act of Terrorism or Sabotage. The most the Trust will pay 
for Property Damaged by an Act of Terrorism or Sabotage is described in Section 
XII.K.9. 

$6,053,676

$500,000 Expenses for Restoration or Modification of Landscaping, Roadways, Paved Surfaces and 
Underground Utilities - (Sublimit is $500,000 or 25% of loss, whichever is less)

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 15



 Property Coverage Declarations
Special Districts Insurance Services

Locations Covered:

Perils Covered:

Locations specifically listed on the Named Participant's Schedule of Property Values.

Risks of Direct Physical Loss subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions of the current 
SDIS Property Coverage Document.

Deductibles: As indicated on the Schedule of Property Values on file with the Trust

Contribution: $4,809.00

Forms Applicable: SDIS Property Coverage Document

This Declaration is made and is mutually accepted by the Trust and Named Participant subject to all 
provisions, stipulations, and agreements which are made a part of the SDIS Property Coverage 
Document.  This Declaration represents only a brief summary of coverages.

Additional Sublimits and Deductibles (Per Occurrence):

Sublimits and Deductibles shown below, if any, are in addition to the sublimits shown above.

Countersigned by: ________________________________________ Tuesday, January 1, 2019
Special Districts Insurance Services

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 16



Comprehensive Crime Policy Certificate
Insured by the Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

Special Districts Insurance Services

Certificate Number: 34P26994-4482 Coverage Period: 1/1/2019 through 12/31/2019

This Certificate of Insurance is a coverage description intended to provide important information 
about the protection available to the the referenced Insured under the Crime Master Policy (the 
"Master Policy" ).  Keep this coverage description for your records. This coverage description is not 
an insurance policy and does not amend, extend or alter coverage afforded by the Master Policy 
described herein.  The insurance afforded by the Master Policy as described herein is subject to all 
the terms, exclusions and conditions of such Master Policy.  The period is specified in the Master 
Policy.  

A1. Employee Theft - Per Loss Includes Faithful Performance 
of Duty, same limit as A1, CRI-7126 Non-Compensated 
Officers, Directors-includes Volunteer Workers as employees, 
Deletion of Bonded Employee and Treasurer/ Tax Collectors 
Exclusion - CRI-19044

D.  In Transit

B. Forgery or Alteration

C. On Premises

E.  Money Order Counterfiet Currency

Limit:

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

A2. ERISA Fidelity - same limit as A.1 (CRI-19044)

F1. Computer Fraud

Named Participant: Agent of Record:
Hood River County Library District

502 State St

Columbia River Insurance

Hood River, OR 97031

P.O. Box 500

Hood River, OR 97031-0059

$100,000

For Any One Loss:

The Master Policy has been issued to: Special Districts Insurance Services Trust - see attached 
Schedule of Named Insured's listed per spreadsheet List of Special Districts Members, Scheduled 
Limits and Retentions.  Address:  727 Center Street NE, Salem, Oregon, 97301.  Policy Number: 
105870359  Underwritten by:  Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Hartford, CT 
06183 (“Travelers”) to provide insurance to an Insured for as described in this Certificate.  

F2. Computer Restoration - same limit as A1 or maximum limit 
of $100,000

G.  Funds Transfer Fraud

H1.  Personal Accounts Forgery or Alteration - same limit as A.

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

$100,000

Retention:

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

$1,000

General Information:
Should you have any questions regarding the Master Policy or wish to view a complete 
copy of the Master Policy, please call Special Districts Insurance Services for general 
information at 1-800-285-5461

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 17



Comprehensive Crime Policy Certificate
Insured by the Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

Special Districts Insurance Services

Contribution: $473.00

H2.  Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement - same limit as A1 
or maximum of $25,000

I.  Claims Expense $5,000

$25,000

$5,000

$0

$0

Special Districts Association of Oregon
PO Box 23879
Tigard, OR 
Phone: 800-305-1736

Claim Filing and General Information including a complete copy of the Master Policy:

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
Bond and Specialty Insurance Claim Department
Cindy Bruder, 6060 S. Willow Drive, Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Phone: 720-200-8476                Email: BFPCLAIMS@travelers.com

Our claims staff will then coordinate and submit the official claim to:

CRI-19070 Social Engineering Fraud $100,000 $1,000

General Information:
Should you have any questions regarding the Master Policy or wish to view a complete 
copy of the Master Policy, please call Special Districts Insurance Services for general 
information at 1-800-285-5461

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 18



Hood River County Library District
Policy Year: 1/1/2019 to 12/31/2019Agent: Columbia River Insurance

Special Districts Insurance Services

Schedule of Property Values - Section 1
Building, Other Structures and Scheduled Outdoor Property

Cascade Locks SchoolPremises:

300 SW WaNaPa

Replacement 3,000

0

City Cascade Locks

No

Cascade Locks School

Yes

Yes97014Zip
# Stories
SQF.

Fire Alm.
Security AlmValuation

Flood Zone **

Vacant (Y/N)

5 1/1/2019

Const. Class
Prot. Class Effective Date 

$92,288
Personal 
Property Value

$0Structure  Value 
26994P67802W

$0Deductible

NoFlood Cov.
NoQuake Cov.

Appraiser Date Comment

No

Appraisal Rpt Code: $92,288Total Value

Structure: BuildingCoverage Class:
JOISTED MASONRY YR. Built 1953 % Sprinkler 0

$79Contribution

$92,288$79Contribution Total ValuePremises Total:

Hood River LibraryPremises:

502 State Street

Replacement 19,468

0

City Hood River

No

Hood River Library

Yes

No97031Zip
# Stories
SQF.

Fire Alm.
Security AlmValuation

Flood Zone **

Vacant (Y/N)

2 1/1/2019

Const. Class
Prot. Class Effective Date 

$1,560,600
Personal 
Property Value

$4,318,700Structure  Value 
26994P9508W

$500Deductible

NoFlood Cov.
NoQuake Cov.

Appraiser CBIZ 11/5/2015Date Comment

No

Appraisal Rpt Code: 01-01 $5,879,300Total Value

Structure: BuildingCoverage Class:
JOISTED MASONRY YR. Built 2006 % Sprinkler 0

$4,656Contribution

$5,879,300$4,656Contribution Total ValuePremises Total:

Parkdale LibraryPremises:

7300 Clear Creek Road

Replacement 700

2

City Parkdale

No

Parkdale Library

No

No97041Zip
# Stories
SQF.

Fire Alm.
Security AlmValuation

Flood Zone **

Vacant (Y/N)

5 1/1/2019

Const. Class
Prot. Class Effective Date 

$82,088
Personal 
Property Value

$0Structure  Value 
26994P9763W

$500Deductible

NoFlood Cov.
NoQuake Cov.

Appraiser Date Comment

No

Appraisal Rpt Code: $82,088Total Value

Structure: BuildingCoverage Class:
JOISTED MASONRY YR. Built 1930 % Sprinkler 0

$74Contribution

$82,088$74Contribution Total ValuePremises Total:

Tuesday, January 1, 2019 Page 1 of 2

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 19



Hood River County Library District
Policy Year: 1/1/2019 to 12/31/2019Agent: Columbia River Insurance

Special Districts Insurance Services

Schedule of Property Values - Section 1
Building, Other Structures and Scheduled Outdoor Property

$4,318,700

$1,734,976

Total Building, Other Structure and 
Scheduled Outdoor Property Value

$6,053,676

Total Personal Property Value
Total Value

**  Flood Zones:  The flood zone shown on the Schedule of Property Values is an estimate, either provided by the member, the 
insurance agent, or an independent appraiser.  It is not a guarantee that the location is or is not in federally designated Special Flood 
Hazard Area (SFHA).  In the event of a covered claim under this Supplemental Coverage, a determination on the flood zone will be 
made based on a review of Federal Emergency Management Agency flood maps, not by the estimated flood zone indicated on this 
Schedule of Property Values.  If there is any question that a location is in a Special Flood Hazard Area, then make sure you obtain NFIP 
coverage for the location.  

Construction Class Options
Fire Resistive
Modified Fire Resistive
Masonry Noncombustible

Noncombustible
Joisted Masonry
Frame

Valuation Options
Actual Cash Value
Replacement Cost
Stated Value

Protection Class
Fire Protection Class is determined by the level of fire protection 
in your area.  Your local fire department should be able to tell you 
which Protection Class your property is in.

$4,809Total Contribution

Tuesday, January 1, 2019 Page 2 of 2

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 20



General Liability Schedule

Policy Year: 1/1/2019 to 12/31/2019

Special Districts Insurance ServicesHood River County Library District
Agent: Columbia River Insurance

Description AmountCode Unit

Per Occurrence Deductible:

Expiration
Date

Effective
Date

$0.00

Contribution

2018-2019 Budgeted Personal Services * 622,648Dollars260150 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $747

2018-2019 Budgeted Materials and Supplies * 509,900Dollars260160 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $1,298

2018-2019 Budgeted Contingencies * 112,000Dollars260170 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Number of Employees 21Each260180 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Number of Volunteers 60Each260190 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Number of Board Members 5Each260192 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

District Size 522Sq Miles260200 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Population Served 22,885Each260210 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Number of Drones (UAVs) Owned or Operated 0Each26100 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Buildings & Premises - Occupied by District 19,600Sqf26215 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Dollars Paid For Services 30,000Dollars26900 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Events/Fundraisers - No Alcohol Served 3Days26997 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $0

Events/Fundraisers - Alcohol Served 3Days26998 1/1/2019 12/31/2019 $214

$2,259

Tuesday, January 1, 2019 Page 1 of 1III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 21



Special Districts Insurance Services
Claims Schedule

Hood River County Library District
Property Type Paid Reserve Collection Incurred

2017
GCPR2017060950Claim Number:
Hood River County LibraryClaimant Name:

Class Code:

Anatomy:
Injury:

Struck By Other VehicleCause:

7/5/2017Accident Date:
PRClaim Type:
ClosedStatus:

A delivery driver struck the library's awning that is over their delivery area.Description:

Age:

7/26/2018Close Date:

Source:

7/5/2017Open Date:
HackbartAdjuster: Hood River County Library DistrictDistrict:

EXP $2,329 $0 $0 $2,329

PD $6,168 $0 $4,204 $1,964

$8,496 $0 $4,204 $4,293

$8,496 $0 $4,204 $4,293Claim Count: 1

$8,496 $0 $4,204 $4,293Claim Count: 1

$8,496 $0 $4,204 $4,293Claim Count: 1

$8,496 $0 $4,204 $4,293Claim Count: 1

Page 1 of 11/1/2019 9:00:54 AM
III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 22



Special Districts Insurance Services - Policy Year 2018-2019 Comparison Report
Hood River County Library District Columbia River Insurance

The following comparison shows the difference in contributions from the 2018 policy year to the 2019 policy year renewal. The following summary shows the amounts and percentages that have 
changed from 2018 to 2019.  This summary is intended only to give you a general idea of the rating components that influence contributions.

$2,800

$0

$0

$5,072

Annualized 2018 
Contribution

Auto Liability

y

Auto Physical Damage

y

Property
$0Earthquake
$0Flood

$118,700

Change in 
Exposures 

General Liability $2,390

$0

$0

$4,842

2019 Contribution 
after rate and 

best practices  
changes

0

$0

Coverage

Best Practices 
% Credit

2018

2019

10.00%

14.00%

$118,700

$118,700

$0

$0

See Below

Pass Through Coverages
$118,700

($410)

$0

$0

($230)
$0

$0

Change after rate 
and best 

practices changes

% change after 
rate and best 

practices changes

0.00%

-14.65%

0.00%

-4.54%
0.00%

0.00%

$2,840

$0

$0

$4,809

2019 Contribution 
after exposure, 

and all other 
changes

$0

$0

$40

$0

$0

($263)
$0

$0

Total contribution 
change

Total % 
contribution 

change

0.00%

1.43%

0.00%

-5.19%
0.00%

0.00%

$8,129Total $7,491 ($638) -7.85% $7,909 ($220) -2.71%

Boiler and Machinery
Crime

$0

$473

$0

$7

0.00%

1.50%

Total $473 $7 1.50%

TOTAL ALL LINES $8,382 ($213) -2.48%

*  Auto Liability Exposure = Number of Autos
   Auto Physical Damage Exposure = Total Insured Automobile Values
   Property Exposure = Total Insured Property Values
   Excess Liability = Materials and Supplies + Personal Services
   Boiler and Machinery = Total Insured Property Values

$0

$466

$466

$8,595

2013-2017 Loss Ratio: 20.70%

Loss Ratio

$150Non-Owned Auto Liability $150 $0 0.00% $150 $0 0.00%

$107Non-Owned APD $110 $3 2.80% $110 $3 2.80%

General Liability Exposure Comparison
Description Last Year Current year Difference
Events/Fundraisers - Alcohol Served 3 3 0

2018-2019 Budgeted Materials and Supplies * 432,950 509,900 76,950

2018-2019 Budgeted Personal Services * 595,588 622,648 27,060

III.ii. 2019 SDAO Property and Liability insurance invoice 23



V.a. Audit 2017-18 – Communication to the governing body 24



V.a. Audit 2017-18 – Communication to the governing body 25



V.a. Audit 2017-18 – Communication to the governing body 26



V.a. Audit 2017-18 – Communication to the governing body 27



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 28



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 29



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 30



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 31



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 32



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 33



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 34



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 35



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 36



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 37



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 38



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 39



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 40



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 41



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 42



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 43



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 44



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 45



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 46



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 47



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 48



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 49



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 50



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 51



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 52



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 53



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 54



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 55



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 56



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 57



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 58



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 59



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 60



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 61



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 62



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 63



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 64



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 65



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 66



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 67



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 68



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 69



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 70



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 71



V.b. Audit 2017-18 – Financial report 72



Celebrating 40 years of assisting special service districts in providing 
 cost-effective and efficient public services to the people of Oregon.

2019 
Annual Conference

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 73



The information in this packet is subject to change. Visit the conference website to view the most up-to-date information and conference 
materials. Paper handouts will not distributed during the conference. 

Register now to reserve your spot!  
www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq

SDAO 
Annual Conference

Don’t miss the largest training and networking event of the year for special district board members and staff!  
The 2019 SDAO Annual Conference will take place in Sunriver, Oregon and will offer over 20 educational sessions 
and multiple opportunities for interacting with your colleagues through business meetings, caucus meetings, social 
activities and more. 

Prior to the conference, there will be a board training and session on risk management. The conference officially 
kicks off on Friday with a captivating keynote address on cyber-crime by Jon Engstrom followed by the Exhibitor 
Trade Show, breakout sessions, district caucus meetings, and the Exhibitor Reception. Saturday will feature more 
educational sessions, the SDAO Annual Business Meeting, and the Awards Banquet. Wrap up the festivities on 
Saturday with a fun evening of dueling pianos entertainment. Hundreds of representatives from Oregon’s special 
districts will attend. For hotel information, conference details, and to register, please visit the conference website at  
www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq. We look forward to seeing you in Sunriver!

 
 

PRE-CONFERENCE - February 7 
CONFERENCE - February 8 - 10 

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 74

http://www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq


Register now to reserve your spot!  
www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq

Annual Conference

This session will focus on recent trends of online fraud, computer intrusion, and methods that suspects use to steal 
valuable data from companies. Learn the details of how hackers commit their crimes and what every employee must 
do to protect company assets. This presentation will teach you about password hacking, email phishing, telephone 
attacks, social engineering, and online devices and how they are emerging threats against every organization.

BREAKFAST & RAFFLE DRAWING 
Stick around on Sunday morning for breakfast and dozens of great prizes from our vendors and members that we will be 
raffling off to our conference attendees. 

ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING & BOARD MEMBER ELECTIONS 
The Annual Business Meeting will include a presentation of the previous year’s annual report, audit and financial report, 
caucus meeting reports, board member elections, and other association business.

 
  
The SDAO Awards Program gives recognition to member districts for accomplishments which allow them to provide better 
services to the public and honors individuals who have contributed substantially to the improvement and successful 
operation of their organization. These awards celebrate the ingenuity, creativity, and diversity of our members. Join us after 
the banquet for a fun and exciting evening of singing along to your favorite songs with our dueling pianos entertainers 
Jeff and Rhiannon with Noteworthy Productions.

EXHIBITOR TRADE SHOW & RECEPTION 
Special districts have a multitude of service needs and product requirements that our exhibitors can meet. At Friday’s 
Exhibitor Trade Show, providers will showcase their products and services. Later in the day, exhibitors will be honored at a 
special exhibitor reception, complete with hors d’oeuvres and refreshments.

CAUCUS MEETINGS & SDAO BOARD MEMBER NOMINATIONS 
Separate caucus meetings are scheduled for fire, irrigation, park and recreation, ports, sanitary, water, and at-large 
districts. This is an opportunity to meet with peers to conduct caucus business, discuss current legislative issues, and 
make nominations for vacant SDAO board member positions. The expiration of terms on the SDAO Board of Directors 
creates an opportunity for you to contribute to the success of SDAO and special districts throughout Oregon. 

PRE-CONFERENCE - February 7 
CONFERENCE - February 8 - 10 

KEYNOTE SPEAKER: JON ENGSTROM - PROTECTING YOUR ORGANIZATION FROM CYBER-CRIME 

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

AWARDS BANQUET & ENTERTAINMENT - DUELING PIANOS

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 75



   

                                            7:30 a.m. │ Breakfast

                                    7 a.m. - 5 p.m. │ Registration Desk Open

                                 8:30 a.m. - 4 p.m. │ Full Day Pre-Conference Sessions

                              10:15 - 10:30 a.m. │ Morning Break

                                      noon - 1 p.m. │ Lunch

                                       3 - 3:15 p.m. │ Afternoon Break

                                       5 - 6:30 p.m. │ Welcoming Reception

       7:30 - 8:30 a.m. │ Breakfast

    7:30 a.m. - 5 p.m. │ Registration Desk Open

    7:30 a.m. - 6 p.m. │ Exhibitor Trade Show

          8:30 - 10 a.m. │ Welcome & Keynote Address

        10 - 10:30 a.m. │ Morning Break

    10:30 a.m. - noon │ Concurrent Sessions

     noon - 1:30 p.m. │ Lunch

            1:30 - 3 p.m. │ Concurrent Sessions

            3 - 3:15 p.m. │ Afternoon Break

            3:15 - 5 p.m. │ District Caucus Meetings

     

            7 a.m. - 6 p.m. │ Registration Desk Open

                     7:30 - 8:30 a.m. │ Breakfast 
                    8:30 - 10 a.m. │ Concurrent Sessions

                      10 - 10:30 a.m. │ Morning Break

                  10:30 a.m. - noon │ Concurrent Sessions

                    noon - 1:30 p.m. │ Lunch

                          1:30 - 3 p.m. │ Concurrent Sessions

                          3 - 3:15 p.m. │ Afternoon Break

                     3:15 - 4:30 p.m. │ Annual Business Meeting & Board Elections

                               6 - 8 p.m. │ Awards Banquet

                          8 - 9:30 p.m. │ Dueling Pianos Show

                                             8 a.m. │ Breakfast & Raffle Drawing

   

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

Pre-Conference • Thursday, February 7

Conference • Friday, February 8

Conference • Saturday, February 9

Conference • Sunday, February 10

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 76



Expiring positions on the SDAO Board of Directors will be open for election at the Annual Business Meeting on Saturday, 
February 9th. Positions open for nomination and the present representatives include:

WATER
• Todd Heidgerken, Clackamas River Water

PORT
• Michele Bradley, Port of Tillamook Bay

PARK & RECREATION
• Keith Hobson, Tualatin Hills Park and Recreation District

TRUE AT-LARGE (Not from Big Six*)
• Reed Wagner, Multnomah County Drainage District #1

• Jim Huffman, Tillamook County Transportation District

Board members are elected for two-year terms extending from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021.

* Big six districts include fire, irrigation, park and recreation, ports, sanitary, and water.

Interested in serving on the SDAO Board of Directors? The expiration of terms on the SDAO Board creates an 
opportunity for you to contribute to the success of SDAO and special districts throughout Oregon. Nominations for 
these board positions will take place at the district caucus meetings on Friday, February 8 from 3:15 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
Elections are subsequently held at the Annual Business Meeting on Saturday, February 9 from 3:15 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. 

The 2019 SDAO conference will be returning to Sunriver Resort in Sunriver, Oregon. The resort is a renowned 
Northwest destination with stunning picturesque views and unparalleled recreational opportunities at your fingertips. 

The SDAO hotel room block will open on December 3rd at 8:00 a.m. Members will receive reservation booking 
information in their confirmation emails after they register for the conference.  

Lodge Village Guest Room: $113/night + tax and resort fee

Lodge Village Suite: $189/night + tax and resort fee

2-Bedroom Loft Condominium: $199/night + tax and resort fee

Print session handouts before you arrive or access them electronically from your device while at the conference. 
Visit www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq, and click on session handouts. After January 10th, visit the Apple App Store or 
Google Play and search for “CrowdCompass AttendeeHub” to download the conference app. Open the app and 
search for 2019 SDAO Annual Conference. Tap the download icon. To gain full access to the content, log in to receive 
a verification code by email. Enter the code in the app.

Board Member Elections

Conference App & Handouts

Hotel Information

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 77

http://www.cvent.com/d/cbq3qq


Special District Boards: Roles and Responsibilities 
George Dunkel and Spencer Rockwell, SDAO

Join SDAO Consulting Services Administrator George Dunkel and SDAO Assistant 
General Counsel Spencer Rockwell in a lively discussion about the roles and 
responsibilities of special district board members. Topics will include public contracting, 
records, meetings, government ethics, board member decorum and conduct, and recent 
trends with public entities. Presentation will include discussion on how board actions and 
decisions impact the organization and community.

 
SDAO Risk Management Training
SDAO Risk Management Staff and Panel

Join our panel of speakers as we cover hot topics in risk management. This well-rounded 
session will offer you information about today’s issues including cyber liability, OSHA, 
human resources, Cascadia earthquake preparedness, and wellness.

Welcoming Reception
The Welcoming Reception is your chance to connect with peers, presenters, and SDAO 
staff in a relaxed, informal setting before the conference gets underway—and it's our 
chance to celebrate your arrival at the conference.

 

$100

5 - 6:30 p.m.

THURSDAY, FEB. 7

8:30 a.m. - 4 p.m.

$100

 

Sunriver's elevation, pitch-dark surroundings, and crystal clear air 
make it perfect for stargazing. Weather permitting, the Oregon 
Observatory at Sunriver will have a high-quality telescope set up 
outside during the conference Welcoming Reception for you to 
view some of the most exciting objects our skies have to offer. An 
observatory staff member will also be available to explain the sights 
you are viewing and answer your cosmic questions. 

Oregon Observatory at Sunriver

Enjoy a night of  

stargazing! 

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 78



THURSDAY, FEB. 7

8:30 a.m. - 4 p.m.

6:30 a.m. 

Exhibitor Trade Show  
Providers will showcase their products and services. Special districts have a multitude of service 
needs and product requirements that our exhibitors can meet. To be eligible for a prize, attendees 
visit each booth to have exhibitors sign their exhibitor drawing card.

Keynote Address  
Our keynote speaker, Jon Engstrom, will talk about recent trends of online fraud, computer 
intrusion, and methods that suspects use to steal valuable data from companies. The presentation 
includes the details of how hackers commit their crimes and what every employee must do to 
protect company assets. The audience will learn how password hacking, email phishing, telephone 
attacks, social engineering, and online devices are emerging threats against every organization. 
Live examples of 'hacking' into information will surprise you, while detailed solutions will be 
displayed on how to stop these threats. You and your district's employees can easily modify a few 
key online habits that will help protect your organization from the next attack.

Cyber-Security
Jon Engstrom 

Our keynote speaker will talk more in-depth about the threats to our privacy and security and how 
we can defend ourselves from the most common attacks that target our organizations as well as 
our own personal data. This class will cover basic and more advanced best practices for reducing 
and securing your digital footprint. Learn how to properly create and store passwords, generate 
proper online security questions, secure your home and work computers from online threats, and 
apply better overall defensive behavior in regards to technology. This session will teach you how 
most hackers can access personal online accounts with only one attempt and how to stop the 
intrusion into our smart devices. We live in a time where malicious actors are attempting to steal 
our information on a daily basis and we will build a foundation of actionable measures to fend off 
these attacks. 

Veterans’ Preference 
Spencer Rockwell, SDAO

Veterans’ preference is an issue we face in our hiring and promotional processes. Join Spencer 
Rockwell, Assistant General Counsel, and special guest for a review of the veterans’ preference law 
and practical tips on how to apply the preference in your hiring and promotional process.
 
Health Savings Accounts - The Basics
Katie Peterson, The Partners Group

This session will cover how a health savings account works, who is eligible, the advantages and 
disadvantages, and why it can be a very attractive health plan option. In addition, we’ll also review  
pertinent legislative updates.

Recruiting, Orienting & Retaining a High-Impact Board
Vanessa Becker, V Consulting

Board recruitment, orientation and retention is a challenge for every board. High functioning 
boards approach recruitment and retention differently. This session will outline a recruitment 
and orientation process that results in improved group dynamics and higher performing board 
members. This session will also cover key tips to managing orientation and retention for elected 
boards, where recruiting your board members is difficult and limited. Learn processes and  actions 
your board can take that will result in a higher functioning board of directors.

FRIDAY, FEB. 8

10:30 a.m. - noon

7:30 a.m. - 6 p.m.

8:30 a.m. - 10:00 a.m.

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 79



1:30 - 3 p.m.

Board Members and Pitfalls – Are You Likely to Misstep?
Judy Clark, HR Answers

This session will address board members’ roles collectively and individually, and offer 
information about what the most effective boards do that contributes to district success. 
This promises to be a lively discussion as real-life examples are used to illustrate the salient 
points.

Internal Controls for Small Local Governments 
Summer Sears, CPA and Kay Johnson, Sisters-Camp Sherman Fire District

This session will provide background, examples, and tips for implementing internal controls 
in local governments, especially those with limited staff and other challenges.

Public Employees’ Due Process Rights in Discipline and Discharge
Chris Duckworth, Bullard Law

Public employees generally have more employment protections compared to private 
employees, and therefore must be given appropriate due process before being terminated 
or receiving serious discipline. In this session, Mr. Duckworth will provide an overview of 
which employees are entitled to receive due process and the various forms of process the 
employer must provide when disciplining or terminating those employees.

The Ten Principles for Recruiting Quality Volunteers for Your Organization
Daniel Olsen, Consultant 

Effective recruitment of quality volunteers requires a well-planned approach. The approach 
begins with a careful planning process to determine who to recruit. It continues with 
developing an internal structure to search for potential volunteer candidates and the 
message that is conveyed to those persons. The recruitment process continues with 
activities necessary to approach those candidates, determine their level of interest and 
involvement in the organization. The recruitment process concludes with a system for 
selections, orientation and onboarding new volunteers to secure their interest, involvement 
and contributions to the success of the organization. This presentation provides practical and 
easy-to-use skills and techniques to improve volunteer recruitment efforts.

Caucus Meetings
Separate caucus meetings are scheduled for fire, irrigation, park and recreation, ports, 
sanitary, water, and at-large districts. This is an opportunity to meet with peers to conduct 
caucus business, discuss current legislative issues, and make nominations for vacant SDAO 
board member positions.

Exhibitor Reception
Exhibitors are honored at a special reception, complete with hors d’oeuvres and 
refreshments. (Dinner is not provided for attendees on Friday evening.)

3:15 - 5 p.m.

5 - 6 p.m.

FRIDAY, FEB. 8

8:30 - 10 a.m.

SATURDAY, FEB. 9

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 80



5 - 6 p.m.

FRIDAY, FEB. 8

8:30 - 10 a.m.

Public Meetings Overview and Executive Sessions
Eileen Eakins, Law Offices of Eileen Eakins, LLC

Public meetings are necessary, but they don’t have to be a necessary evil. This session will 
provide a refresher on Oregon’s public meetings requirements, with additional emphasis on 
the parameters and challenges of executive sessions.

Psychological First Aid for Responders and Those They Serve (Part One) 
Jim Bennett, Bolante.NET

Psychological first aid (PFA) is an evidence-informed modular approach to help individuals in 
the immediate aftermath of a disaster and terrorism to foster short and long-term adaptive 
functioning. PFA can be provided by first responders and other disaster relief workers. PFA is 
not mental health therapy but is a “supportive intervention” delivered by both mental health 
professionals and disaster response workers. (Part One of Two)

Pay Equity, Compliance and Administration
Laurie Grenya, HR Answers

The Oregon revised Pay Equity was fully implemented on January 1, 2018. We will review 
the steps that need to be completed to know if compliance has been met and the ongoing 
administration needs for each organization. Pay Equity is about long-term planning and 
consistent administration of well defined processes.

Municipal Finance: Continuing Disclosure - New Rules and Regulations
David Ulbricht, SDAO; Ann Sherman, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP; and Lauren 
MacMillan, Piper Jaffray Inc.

New securities regulations will add to the list of information special districts and other 
governments must provide to investors during the life of their financing. The Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 15c2-12 requires special districts that issue indebtedness in the 
public market agree to provide certain information to investors on an ongoing basis. The rule 
requires, among other things, that special districts provide prompt notice of certain “material 
events.” The SEC recently adopted amendments to the rule, which add two new events to this 
list of “material events” that special districts must disclose. Learn what impact they could have 
on your district when incurring indebtedness. The session will also provide information about 
special districts' responsibilities with continuing disclosure and who must comply with the 
SEC disclosure rules.

SATURDAY, FEB. 9

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 81



10:30 a.m. - noon

Priority Planning
George Dunkel, SDAO

Special district boards and staff need to be confident that they are working together to accomplish 
the mission of their district. This presentation will outline steps boards should take in developing 
goals, establishing priorities and outlining the steps necessary for the organization to move 
towards positive outcomes.

Psychological First Aid for Responders and Those They Serve (Part Two) 
Jim Bennett, Bolante.NET

Psychological first aid (PFA) is an evidence-informed modular approach to help individuals in the 
immediate aftermath of a disaster and terrorism to foster short and long-term adaptive functioning. 
PFA can be provided by first responders and other disaster relief workers. PFA is not mental 
health therapy but is a “supportive intervention” delivered by both mental health professionals and 
disaster response workers. (Part Two of Two)

Cutting-Edge Employee Gender Issues
Dee Rubanoff and Chandra Hatfield, Peck Rubanoff & Hatfield, P.C.

Join Dee and Chandra for an overview of recent legal trends regarding gender-related 
employment issues. The discussion will focus on pregnancy accommodations, transgender 
protections, making credibility determinations in “me too” sexual harassment investigations, and 
why the Oregon Equal Pay Act is no longer just about gender equality.    

How Social Should Special Districts Be?
Sloane Dell'Orto, Streamline

Using real life stories, statistics and experience, we’ll explore some of the potential, and the 
potential pitfalls, of using social media as a special district. If you’re bewildered by social media 
options and their potential impact on your district (or if you’re already challenged with trying to 
keep up your agency’s social media content), this talk is for you. And if you’re successfully using 
social media, bring your stories! We’ll go over the most prevalent options, strengths/weaknesses 
and considerations for each, and potential pitfalls to watch for. We’ll also look at agencies who 
have to co-exist with community-generated social media “district” pages that aren’t in the control 
of the district, and give examples of social media being done well, and done poorly. 

 

Lessons Your Civics Teacher Never Taught You: Stronger Governance Through 
Collaboration, Compassion and Courtesy 
Christy Monson, Local Government Law Group and Wendy Willis, Oregon's Kitchen Table

Have you ever watched a contentious board meeting and wondered to yourself, “There’s got to be 
a better way?” Using meticulously researched national studies as well as real-life special district 
stories from Oregon, Wendy and Christy will discuss national and statewide governance trends—
which suggest why board members and staff should rethink how they wield power in contentious 
situations. This session will also provide useful tools for communicating during a crisis, navigating   
adversarial situations, and collaborating with businesses, governments, and each other. This 
presentation is meant for both new and veteran elected officials, as well as staff.

1:30 - 3 p.m.

SATURDAY, FEB. 9

1:30 - 3 p.m. (cont.)

SATURDAY, FEB. 9

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 82



SATURDAY, FEB. 9

1:30 - 3 p.m. (cont.)

The Seven Stages of Employment Practices Litigation 
Teri Dragoo and Jens Jensen, SDAO

Join Teri and Jens as they describe the pitfalls of employment litigation, what to expect if you find 
yourself in an employment practices litigation case, and how to help avoid it. 

Overview of Payroll and Related Rules
Monica Harrison and Aubrie Shewey, SDAO

Are you sure you’re compensating your employees correctly?  Are you confident that you are not 
at risk for a wage and hour claim? Join us for an overview of payroll compliance along with related 
human resources topics regarding employee compensation. This session is intended for the 
payroll practitioner and supervisors who oversee employees. It will include subject matter such as 
determining the position’s classification, review of payroll taxes and reporting requirements, and 
other rules that may impact your operational decisions.

Legislative Summary 
Hasina Wittenberg and Mark Landauer, SDAO

The Oregon State Legislature convenes for its long session in February. Expected to run through 
June, SDAO staff will track hundreds of pieces of legislation affecting all types of special districts. 
Legislative staff will provide an overview of SDAO legislative priorities and provide insight into 
potential positive and negative legislation that will affect special districts. Districts interested in 
pending legislation should not miss this legislative update.

Annual Business Meeting  
The Annual Business Meeting will include a presentation of the previous year’s annual report, 
audit and financial report, caucus meeting reports, board member elections, and other association 
business.

Awards Banquet  
The SDAO Awards Program gives recognition to member districts for accomplishments which 
allow them to provide better services to the public and honors individuals who have contributed 
substantially to the improvement and successful operation of their organization. These awards 
celebrate the ingenuity, creativity, and diversity of our members.

Entertainment - Dueling Pianos
Join us after the Awards Banquet for an exciting evening of dueling pianos entertainment provided 
by Jeff and Rhiannon with Noteworthy Productions. 

Breakfast & Raffle Drawing 
Stick around on Sunday morning for breakfast and dozens of great prizes from our vendors and 
members that we will be raffling off to our conference attendees. (Must be present to win.)

3:15 - 4:30 p.m.

8 - 10 p.m.

6 - 8 p.m.

8:00 a.m.

SATURDAY, FEB. 9

SUNDAY, FEB. 10

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 83



Administrators for SDIS
PO Box 12613

Salem OR 97309-0613

Toll-free: 800-285-5461
Phone: 503-371-8667

Fax: 503-371-4781

E-mail: sdao@sdao.com

Web: www.sdao.com

PRSRT STD

U.S. POSTAGE

PAID

SALEM, OR

PERMIT No. 263

2019 Annual Conference

VIII.i. SDAO 2019 conference brochure 84



Renewal 7344 2017-12-07

 

Hood River County Library District 2824 Columbia Ave 502 State St.

Attn Orders Dept

Hood River, OR 97031 Wilmington NC 28403

Title Issues Price Qty Start

Architectural Digest 12 $15.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0003-8520 Publisher: Conde Nast Publications

Artists Magazine, The  10 $25.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0741-3351 Publisher: F & W Media Inc

Atlantic, The 10 $29.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1072-7825 Publisher: Atlantic Media Company

Better Homes & Gardens 12 $44.00 2 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0006-0151 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Bon Appetit 11 $10.00 1 06/01/2019

ISSN: 0006-6990 Publisher: Conde Nast Publications

Catster 6 $24.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 2376-8258 Publisher: Lumina Media

Cocina Facil 11 $140.00 1 02/20/2019

ISSN: Publisher: Martin de Jesus Sanchez Espinosa

Consumer Reports 12 $60.00 2 03/01/2019

Consumer Reports Buying Guide

ISSN: 0010-7174 Publisher: Consumers Union of US, Inc

Cook's Illustrated 6 $24.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1068-2821 Publisher: Boston Common Press Ltd Partners

Cricket 9 $33.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0090-6034 Publisher: Cricket Media

Dwell Magazine 6 $19.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1530-5309 Publisher: Dwell Magazine

Economist, The - Print 51 $152.00 1 03/04/2019

World In, The

ISSN: 0013-0613 Publisher: The Economist

Fine Homebuilding 8 $42.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1096-360X Publisher: Taunton Press

Flyfishing & Tying Journal 4 $18.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1521-7361 Publisher: Frank Amato Publications

Futbol Total 12 $102.17 1 02/20/2019

ISSN: 1657-3757 Publisher: Group Medios S.A. DE C.V.

Good Housekeeping 12 $21.97 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0017-209X Publisher: Hearst Magazines Division

Harper's Magazine 12 $17.97 1 03/01/2019

Harper's Magazine  Index

VIII.ii. Invoice from Rivistas Subscription Services 85



ISSN: 0017-789X Publisher: Harper's Magazine

High Times 12 Paid 1 02/01/2020

ISSN: 0362-630X Publisher: High Times

Highlights For Children 12 $104.85 3 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0018-165X Publisher: Highlights for Children

Hobby Farms 6 $15.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1533-0931 Publisher: Lumina Media

Horn Book Magazine 6 $72.00 1 03/01/2019

Horn Book Cumulative Index

ISSN: 0018-5078 Publisher: Media Source Incorporated

Horticulture Magazine 8 $19.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0018-5329 Publisher: F & W Media Inc

House Beautiful 10 $24.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0018-6422 Publisher: Hearst Magazines Division

Ingredient Magazine 4 $35.00 1 02/20/2019

ISSN: Publisher: Ingredient

Ladybug 9 $33.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1051-4961 Publisher: Cricket Media

Library Journal - Print & Online 20 $390.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0363-0277 Publisher: Media Source Incorporated

Make Magazine 6 $39.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1556-2336 Publisher: Make Magazine

Martha Stewart Living 10 $28.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1057-5251 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Money 11 $41.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0149-4953 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Mother Earth News  6 $20.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0027-1535 Publisher: Ogden Publications Inc

Mother Jones 6 $24.00 1 05/01/2019

ISSN: 0362-8841 Publisher: Mother Jones

Motor Trend 12 $10.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0027-2094 Publisher: The Enthusiast Network

Mountain Bike Action 12 $19.98 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0895-8467 Publisher: 

National Audubon Society Membership -  Please Order DIrect 6 $0.00 1 03/01/2019

Audubon Magazine - Please Order Direct

ISSN: Publisher: National Audubon Society Inc

National Geographic Kids 10 $25.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1542-3042 Publisher: National Geographic Society

National Geographic Magazine 12 $39.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0027-9358 Publisher: National Geographic Society

National Geographic Traveler 6 $20.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0747-0932 Publisher: National Geographic Society

New York Times Book Review 52 $186.80 1 03/04/2019

VIII.ii. Invoice from Rivistas Subscription Services 86



ISSN: 0028-7806 Publisher: New York Times

New Yorker, The 47 $99.00 1 03/04/2019

ISSN: 0028-792X Publisher: Conde Nast Publications

O, The Oprah Magazine 12 $28.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1531-3247 Publisher: Hearst Magazines Division

Oregon Historical Society Membership 1 $80.00 1 03/01/2019

Oregon Historical Quarterly

ISSN: Publisher: Oregon Historical Society

Outside Magazine 12 $24.00 1 06/01/2019

ISSN: 0278-1433 Publisher: Outside Magazine

Parents 12 $15.98 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1083-6373 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

People 54 $236.52 2 03/04/2019

ISSN: 0093-7673 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

People en Espanol 10 $39.94 2 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1096-5750 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Permaculture 12 $85.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: Publisher: Permaculture

Popular Mechanics 10 $24.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0032-4558 Publisher: Hearst Magazines Division

Popular Science 4 Paid 1 03/01/2022

ISSN: 0161-7370 Publisher: Bonnier Corporation

QuiltMaker 6 $29.97 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: Publisher: Quilt Maker

Ranger Rick 10 $24.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0738-6656 Publisher: National Wildlife Federation

Real Simple 12 $28.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1528-1701 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Rolling Stone 12 $59.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0035-791X Publisher: Wenner Media Inc

Runner's World 10 $24.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0897-1706 Publisher: Hearst Magazines Division

School Library Journal - Print & Online 12 $349.99 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0362-8930 Publisher: Media Source Incorporated

Science News 23 $50.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0036-8423 Publisher: Society For Science & Public

Scientific American 12 $84.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0036-8733 Publisher: Scientific American, Inc.

Small Farmer's Journal 4 $50.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0743-9989 Publisher: Small Farmer's Journal

Smithsonian 11 $34.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0037-7333 Publisher: Smithsonian Magazine

Spider 9 $33.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1070-2911 Publisher: Cricket Media

VIII.ii. Invoice from Rivistas Subscription Services 87



Sports Illustrated For Kids 12 $31.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1042-394X Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Stone Soup - Print 11 $90.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0094-579X Publisher: Stone Soup

Sun, The 12 $42.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0744-9666 Publisher: Unknown

This Old House 8 $24.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1086-2633 Publisher: Meredith Corporation

Threads 6 $69.90 2 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0882-7370 Publisher: Taunton Press

Time Magazine 52 $76.13 1 03/04/2019

ISSN: 0040-781X Publisher: Meredith Corporation

TV Y Novelas - Please Order Direct 12 $0.00 2 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0188-0683 Publisher: Televisa

Utne Reader 4 $36.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 1544-2225 Publisher: Ogden Publications Inc

Vanidades - Please Order Direct 12 $0.00 2 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0505-0146 Publisher: Televisa

Vanity Fair 12 $24.00 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0733-8899 Publisher: Conde Nast Publications

Vogue 12 $29.95 1 02/20/2019

ISSN: 0042-8000 Publisher: Conde Nast Publications

Vogue Knitting International 5 $27.97 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0890-9237 Publisher: Soho Publishing

Wall Street Journal - Carrier 305 $477.88 1 11/23/2018

WSJ Weekend

WSJ Magazine

ISSN: 0099-9660 Publisher: Dow Jones & Company Inc

Writer, The 12 $32.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0043-9517 Publisher: Madavor Media, LLC

Yoga Journal 10 $21.95 1 03/01/2019

ISSN: 0191-0965 Publisher: Active Interest Media

Total $4,320.07

Discount 452.05

Renewal Total $3,868.02

Please send approved orders or questions to orders@rivistas.com, call 1-800-277-5750 or mail to the above address.

Thank you for choosing Rivistas.

VIII.ii. Invoice from Rivistas Subscription Services 88



Library Director Evaluation Policy

The Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library District has one 
senior management staff position, Library Director. The Library Director 
reports to the Board of Directors  and is responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of the District. The Board of Directors has the authority and 
responsibility to administer the annual evaluation process of the Library 
Director. 

Frequency
The District will evaluate the Library Director’s performance as it relates to the duties in the 
job description and goals established for the District and Director at the six month hiring 
anniversary, again at twelve months, and annually thereafter. In addition to evaluating 
performance, the review will include opportunity to create annual goals and identify training 
needs or opportunities for the Library Director. The annual evaluation timeline shall be created
and changed as needed by the Board President and approved by the Board of Directors. 
 

Procedure
The Board of Directors shall complete the Library Director evaluation using the following 
procedures:
 

1. The Board of Directors shall establish the evaluation and criteria in consultation with 
the Library Director. Any changes to the criteria or goals shall become effective after 
mutual agreement between the Board and the Library Director.

2. The Library Director shall complete a self evaluation form and submit it to the Board.
3. District staff shall be requested to supply anonymous written input on approved 

evaluation forms, which shall allow for standard ratings and space for written 
comments.

4. The overall results of a feedback survey from community members selected by the 
Board of Directors may be used as a source of input in the evaluation process.

5. Board members shall complete individual evaluations, on forms with standard ratings 
and space for written comments, following receipt of evaluations from the Library 
Director, District staff, and community members.

6. The input from the Board, staff, Library Director, and community evaluations, as well as
the forms themselves, shall be compiled by the Board President.

7. The final draft of the evaluation is then presented to the Library Director. Scored areas 
will be averaged as appropriate. The written statements of the evaluations shall be 
included. 

8. The Library Director shall have one week to review the final draft of the evaluation and 
develop written comments in response. These comments shall be submitted first to the
Board of Directors with the proposed evaluation.

9. The evaluation shall at all times be reviewed in executive session meetings unless the 
Library Director requests that it be conducted in public.

10.The President will meet with the Library Director to review the evaluation, develop 
goals, and identify training needs to be included in the final evaluation document.

VIII.iii. Library Director Evaluation Policy 89



Library Director Evaluation Policy, p.2

11. The Board of Directors shall review and accept or reject the evaluation or any portion 
thereof as compiled by the President. At this time, the Board of Directors shall 
determine the amount of salary increase (if any) in the Library Director’s compensation 
to be awarded in the next fiscal year (July 1). The salary increase shall be in 
compliance with the established salary structure system. The salary deliberations shall 
be held in public session. 

12.The evaluation, once approved by the Board of Directors, is then presented to the 
Library Director for his/her files and the personnel file. The evaluation is subject to 
disclosure under public records laws. 

Approved by the Board of Directors, June 19, 2012
Last amended: January 15, 2018
Last reviewed: January 15, 2018

VIII.iii. Library Director Evaluation Policy 90


	Library Director Evaluation Policy

